
 
AGENDA  

SPPA Board of Commissioners|AMK 

Regular Board Meeting 
May 26, 2020 - 2:00 p.m. 

380 St. Peter Street, Suite 850 l Saint Paul, MN 55102 
 
Chair Bennett is calling a meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Tuesday, May 26, 2020 at 2:00 
p.m. Chair Bennett has determined, due to the emergency declared by the Governor of Minnesota 
and the Mayor of Saint Paul regarding the COVID-19 health pandemic, that it is not practical nor 
prudent for the Saint Paul Port Authority Board and members of the staff to meet in-person or 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 13D.02. In light of the COVID-19 health pandemic, it is not 
feasible for any member of the Saint Paul Port Authority Board and staff to be present at the regular 
location, and all staff and Board members of the Saint Paul Port Authority will attend this meeting 
by telephone or other electronic means.   
 

It is also not feasible for members of the public to attend the meeting at its regular location due to 
the health pandemic and emergency. Accordingly, no meeting will be held at the Saint Paul Port 
Authority offices which are located at 380 St. Peter Street, Suite 850, St. Paul, MN. Members of the 
public may monitor this meeting remotely at 651-395-7858, Conference ID: 603 551 271#. The 
purpose of the meeting is:  
 
Minutes 
Approval of Minutes of the April 28, 2020 Regular Board Meeting  
 
Conflicts of Interest 
Conflicts with any Items on the Agenda 
 
New Business 
 
Credit Committee 
1. Resolution No. 4675  –  Revised, Amended and Restated Resolution No. 4673 to Comply 

            with DEED’s Requirements to Apply for Contamination Cleanup 
           Grant Funds for United Village at Midway Project (Block B)  

 
2. Resolution No. 4676  –   Approval of the Issuance of One or More Series of up to    

            $11,075,000 of Taxable Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds  
       (Treasure Island Center) Series 2020  

 
General Matters 
Such Other Business That May Come Before the Board 
 



SPPA Board of Commissioners| Page 1 | amk 

SAINT PAUL PORT AUTHORITY 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

APRIL 28, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The regular meeting of the Port Authority Board was held on April  28, 2020 at 2:41 p.m. 
via Microsoft Teams.  
 
 The following Board Members were present: 
 John Bennett   Paul Williams               John Marshall              
 Don Mullin   Dai Thao   Nneka Constantino  
 
 Also present were the following: 
 Lee Krueger   Andrea Novak   David Johnson  
 Kathryn Sarnecki  Laurie Siever   Bruce Kessel  
 Dana Krueger   George Hoene   Linda Williams    
 Michael Linder  Monte Hilleman  Peter Klein 
 Sarah Savela   Todd Hurley   Tonya Bauer 
 Nelly Chick   Ann Kosel   
 Eric Larson, City of Saint Paul, General Counsel  
 Michelle Hoffman, CliftonLarsonAllen  
 Lucas Chase, CliftonLarsonAllen   

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
 Commissioner Marshall made a motion to approve the minutes of the February 25, 2020 
Regular and Closed Board Meeting and the March 24, 2020 Closed Board meeting. The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Thao, submitted to a roll call vote and carried unanimously.   
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no conflicts of interest with any items on the agenda.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF 2019 AUDITS 
 

 Motion was made by Chair Marshall to accept the 2019 audits which were reviewed by 
the Administrative Committee and recommended for approval by the Board.  The motion was 
submitted to a roll call vote and carried unanimously. 
 

 
 



SPPA Board of Commissioners| Page 2 | amk 

RESOLUTION NO. 4672 
AUTHORIZATION FOR CONTINUATION OF CAPITAL CITY PROPERTIES CORPORATION 

 
 Motion was made by Chair Marshall to approve Resolution No. 4672 which was reviewed 
by the Administrative Committee and recommended for approval by the Board.  The motion was 
submitted to a roll call vote and carried unanimously.   
 

CREDIT COMMITTEE  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4673 
AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR CONTAMINATION CLEANUP  

GRANT FUNDS FOR UNITED VILLAGE AT MIDWAY PROJECT (BLOCK B) 
 

 Motion was made by Chair Mullin to approve Resolution No. 4673 which was reviewed 
by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval by the Board.  The motion was 
submitted to a roll call vote and carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4674 
AUTHORIZATION TO ENROLL IN AND ADMINSTER LOANS  

THROUGH DEED’S SMALL BUSINESS LOAN GUARANTEE PROGRAM 
 

 Motion was made by Chair Mullin to approve Resolution No. 4674 which was reviewed 
by the Credit Committee and recommended for approval by the Board.  The motion was 
submitted to a roll call vote and carried unanimously. 
 

GENERAL MATTERS 
 

 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:57 p.m.  
 
  
       By ________________________________ 
 
       Its _________________________________ 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

Board of Commissioners | Page 1 | ALK:lkw 

 

 

To: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS        Meeting Date:  May 26, 2020 

From: Ava Langston-Kenney 

Subject: REVISED, AMENDED AND RESTATED RESOLUTION NO. 4673 TO COMPLY  
 WITH DEED’S REQUIREMENTS TO APPLY FOR CONTAMINATION CLEANUP 
 GRANT FUNDS FOR UNITED VILLAGE AT MIDWAY PROJECT (BLOCK B)  
 RESOLUTION NO.  4675 
 
Action Requested: 
Approval of the revised, amended and restated Resolution No. 4673 to comply with Minnesota 
Department of Employment and Economic Development’s (DEED) grant requirements. 
 
Background 
On April 28, 2020, the Port Authority Board authorized staff to apply to DEED for up to 
$1,000,000.00, the Metropolitan Council for up to $500,000.00 and Ramsey County for up to 
$500,000.00 in contamination cleanup grant funds for the United Village at Midway Project 
(Block B) on an approximate 2-acre site located at 1574 University Avenue West in Saint Paul, 
Minnesota.  See the attached map showing the location of the property. 
 
On May 1, 2020, staff and staff consultants applied for funding from DEED, Met Council and 
Ramsey County on behalf of the property owner, Snelling-Midway Redevelopment, LLC, which 
plans to remediate the site.  A resolution is required from the Port Authority Board of 
Commissioners authorizing the applications.  If one or more grants are awarded, the Port 
Authority will provide grant oversight and environmental project management services on a fee 
basis to Snelling-Midway.  
 
On May 15, 2020, staff was contacted by DEED and informed that Resolution 4673 does not 
contain a few provisions that DEED would like to see in the Port Authority’s resolution from its 
Board of Commissioners. 
 
On May 18, 2020, staff and its consultant contacted DEED to discuss the meaning of the approved 
resolution and put forth staff’s willingness to provide a revised resolution that provides the 
wording and information DEED seeks.   (A marked-up version of Resolution 4673 is attached.) 
 
In the interim, DEED has accepted the revisions by e-mail, as it evaluates the Port Authority’s 
grant application, knowing that the Port Authority will supplement the record with a revised 
resolution approved by our Board on May 26, 2020. 
 
The additions DEED has requested have been incorporated into our grant application resolutions 
template to preclude further administrative discrepancies in the future. 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

Board of Commissioners | Page 2 | ALK:lkw 

 

 

 
Recommendation: 
We recommend approval of the revised, amended and restated resolution granting the Port 
Authority authorization to apply to Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic 
Development for up to $1,000,000.00, the Metropolitan Council for up to $500,000.00 and 
Ramsey County for up to $500,000.00 in contamination cleanup grant funds. 
 
 
Attachments: Map 
    Original Resolution No. 4673, revised and marked up 
    New Resolution No. 4675 



UNIVERSITY AVENUE W.

SN
EL

LI
N

G
 A

VE
N

U
E 

N
.

ST. ANTHONY AVENUE

PA
SC

AL
 S

TR
EE

T 
N

.

INTERSTATE 94

UNITED VILLAGES AT MIDWAY
BLOCK B RAP AREA
(APPROXIMATE)

F:
\2

01
6\

B1
60

09
41

-0
6\

C
AD

\B
16

00
94

1-
06

.d
w

g,
07

 - 
Lo

c 
M

ap
,4

/1
/2

02
0 

2:
29

:3
4 

PM

braunintertec.com
952.995.2000

Minneapolis, MN  55438
11001 Hampshire Avenue S

0

SCALE: 1"= 150'

150'75'

N

Project No:

B1600941-06
Drawn By:
Date Drawn:
Checked By:
Last Modified: 4/1/20

Drawing No:

Project Information

Drawing Information

B1600941.07

BJB
8/20/19

KL

United Villages at
Midway Project

Block B Development

Saint Paul, Minnesota

Project Location
Map

BLOCK/AREA B1 BLOCK/AREA
B2



106696081.1 0081785-00003  

Resolution No. 4673_____ 
 

REVISED, AMENDED AND RESTATED 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 

[AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR CONTAMINATION CLEANUP 
GRANT FUNDS FOR UNITED VILLAGE AT MIDWAY PROJECT (BLOCK B)] 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul (the “Port Authority”) is a public 

body corporate and politic and governmental subdivision organized pursuant to Chapter 469 of 
Minnesota Statutes. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority’s Board of Commissioners are appointed by the Mayor of 

the City of Saint Paul subject to the approval of the Council of the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Port Authority Commissioners must be members of the Council of 

the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS,  said  members  of  the  Council  of  the  City  of  Saint  Paul  serve  on  the  Port 

Authority Board so long as they continue to be members of the Council of the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, the district of the Port Authority is the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. §§ 469.048 to 469.061, the Port Authority has the powers 

and duties conferred upon all port authorities. 
 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. § 469.084, Subds. 1 to 15, the Port Authority of the City of 

Saint Paul has additional statutory duties and powers including powers related to recreational 
facilities and small business capital. 

 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. § 469.084, Subd. 8, the Port Authority of the City of Saint 

Paul, furthermore, has the power of and is authorized to do what a redevelopment agency may 
do or must do under sections 469.152 to 469.165 (Municipal Industrial Development). 
   

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Livable Communities Act permits a grant to a metropolitan 
county or a development authority, such as the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul, but the 
project must be located in a participating municipality.  

 
WHEREAS,  the  City  of  St.  Paul  is  a  participant  in  the  Livable  Communities  Act's  Local 

Housing Incentives Account Program for 2020 as determined by the Metropolitan Council; and is 
therefore eligible to make application apply for funds under the Tax Base Revitalization Account. 
 



106696081.1 0081785-00003  2

WHEREAS, the Port Authority represents that it has undertaken reasonable and good faith 
efforts to procure funding in pursuit of  its mission from other sources  in addition to grant, or 
other program resources to which it may seek assistance. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority desires to request and accept from, if awarded, a grant from 

the Minnesota  Department  of  Employment  and  Economic  Development  in  an  amount  up  to 
$1,000,000.00, a grant from the Metropolitan Council  in an amount up to $500,000.00; and a 
grant  from Ramsey County  in an amount up  to $500,000.00  for contamination cleanup grant 
funds for redevelopment of Block B at the United Village at Midway, an approximately 2‐acre site 
located at 1574 University Avenue West in Saint Paul, Minnesota. 

 
  WHEREAS, the Port Authority has identified a contamination cleanup project within the 
City that meet the Tax Base Revitalization Account's purposes and criteria and are consistent with 
and promote the purposes of the Metropolitan Livable Communities Act and the policies of the 
Metropolitan Council's adopted metropolitan development guide. 
 
  WHEREAS, the Port Authority has the institutional, managerial and financial capability to 
ensure adequate project and grant administration. 
 
  WHEREAS,  the Port Authority  certifies  that  it will  comply with  all  applicable  laws  and 
regulations as stated in the contract grant agreements. 
 
  WHEREAS, the Port Authority finds that the required contamination cleanup will not occur 
through private or other public investment within the reasonably foreseeable future without Tax 
Base Revitalization Account grant funding.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL:   
 
1. That the Port Authority act as the legal sponsor for the project contained in the 

Contamination Cleanup Grant Program, Tax Base Revitalization Account Grant Program, and 
Environmental Response Fund Grant Program to be submitted on May 1, 2020 and that Lee 
Krueger,  President,  is  hereby  authorized  to  apply  to  the  Department  of  Employment  and 
Economic Development, Metropolitan Council, and Ramsey County for funding of this project 
on behalf of the Port Authority. 

1. 2.  That the City of Saint Paul is located within the seven county metropolitan 
area defined in Section 473.121, subdivision 2, and is participating in the local housing incentives 
program for 2020 as determined by the Metropolitan Council and under Section 473.254.  

 
3. That the Port Authority has the legal authority to apply for financial assistance, 

and  the  institutional,  managerial,  and  financial  capability  to  ensure  adequate  project 
administration. 



106696081.1 0081785-00003  3

 
2.4. That the sources and amounts of the local match identified in the application are 

committed to the project identified. 
 
3.5. That  the  Port  Authority  has  not  violated  any  Federal,  State  or  local  laws 

pertaining to fraud, bribery, graft, kickbacks, collusion, conflict of interest or other unlawful or 
corrupt practice. 

 
4.6. That  upon  approval  of  its  application,  the  Port  Authority  may  enter  into  an 

agreement with  the  State  of Minnesota, Metropolitan  Council,  and  Ramsey  County  for  the 
above‐referenced  project,  and  that  the  Port  Authority  certifies  that  it  will  comply  with  all 
applicable laws and regulations as stated in all contract agreements. 

 
5.7. That  the  President  is hereby encouraged and authorized to request and accept 

from,  if  awarded,  a  Contamination  Cleanup  grant  from  the  Minnesota  Department  of 
Employment and Economic Development (DEED) in an amount up to $1,000,000.00; a Tax Base 
Revitalization  Account  Contamination  Cleanup  grant  from  the  Metropolitan  Council  in  an 
amount up to $500,000.00; and, an Environmental Response Fund grant from Ramsey County 
in an amount up to $500,000.00 in grant funds for the United Village at Midway Project (Block 
B). 

 
6.8. That the President or anyone acting under his direction is hereby authorized and 

directed to  execute any  and  all necessary  documents to  complete  the  grant  application and 
secure its receipt, including any matching fund requirements. 

 
Adopted:  April 28May 26, 2020       
 

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE  
CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

 
 
              By _____________________________ 
                   Its Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By _____________________________ 
     Its Secretary  



106696081.1 0081785-00003  

Resolution No. 4675 
 

REVISED, AMENDED AND RESTATED 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 

[AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR CONTAMINATION CLEANUP 
GRANT FUNDS FOR UNITED VILLAGE AT MIDWAY PROJECT (BLOCK B)] 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul (the “Port Authority”) is a public 

body corporate and politic and governmental subdivision organized pursuant to Chapter 469 of 
Minnesota Statutes. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority’s Board of Commissioners are appointed by the Mayor of 

the City of Saint Paul subject to the approval of the Council of the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Port Authority Commissioners must be members of the Council of 

the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, said members of the Council of the City of Saint Paul serve on the Port 

Authority Board so long as they continue to be members of the Council of the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, the district of the Port Authority is the City of Saint Paul. 
 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. §§ 469.048 to 469.061, the Port Authority has the powers 

and duties conferred upon all port authorities. 
 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. § 469.084, Subds. 1 to 15, the Port Authority of the City of 

Saint Paul has additional statutory duties and powers including powers related to recreational 
facilities and small business capital. 

 
WHEREAS, under Minn. Stat. § 469.084, Subd. 8, the Port Authority of the City of Saint 

Paul, furthermore, has the power of and is authorized to do what a redevelopment agency may 
do or must do under sections 469.152 to 469.165 (Municipal Industrial Development). 
  

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Livable Communities Act permits a grant to a metropolitan 
county or a development authority, such as the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul, but the 
project must be located in a participating municipality.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Paul is a participant in the Livable Communities Act's Local 

Housing Incentives Account Program for 2020 as determined by the Metropolitan Council; and is 
therefore eligible to apply for funds. 
 



106696081.1 0081785-00003  2 

WHEREAS, the Port Authority represents that it has undertaken reasonable and good faith 
efforts to procure funding in pursuit of its mission from other sources in addition to grant, or 
other program resources to which it may seek assistance. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority desires to request and accept from, if awarded, a grant from 

the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development in an amount up to 
$1,000,000.00, a grant from the Metropolitan Council in an amount up to $500,000.00; and a 
grant from Ramsey County in an amount up to $500,000.00 for contamination cleanup grant 
funds for redevelopment of Block B at the United Village at Midway, an approximately 2-acre site 
located at 1574 University Avenue West in Saint Paul, Minnesota. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Port Authority has identified a contamination cleanup project within the 
City that meet the Tax Base Revitalization Account's purposes and criteria and are consistent with 
and promote the purposes of the Metropolitan Livable Communities Act and the policies of the 
Metropolitan Council's adopted metropolitan development guide. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Authority has the institutional, managerial and financial capability to 
ensure adequate project and grant administration. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Authority certifies that it will comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations as stated in the contract grant agreements. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Authority finds that the required contamination cleanup will not occur 
through private or other public investment within the reasonably foreseeable future without Tax 
Base Revitalization Account grant funding.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL:   
 
1. That the Port Authority act as the legal sponsor for the project contained in the 

Contamination Cleanup Grant Program, Tax Base Revitalization Account Grant Program, and 
Environmental Response Fund Grant Program to be submitted on May 1, 2020 and that Lee 
Krueger, President, is hereby authorized to apply to the Department of Employment and 
Economic Development, Metropolitan Council, and Ramsey County for funding of this project 
on behalf of the Port Authority. 

2. That the City of Saint Paul is located within the seven county metropolitan area 
defined in Section 473.121, subdivision 2, and is participating in the local housing incentives 
program for 2020 as determined by the Metropolitan Council and under Section 473.254.  
 

3. That the Port Authority has the legal authority to apply for financial assistance, 
and the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to ensure adequate project 
administration. 

 



106696081.1 0081785-00003  3 

4. That the sources and amounts of the local match identified in the application are 
committed to the project identified. 

 
5. That the Port Authority has not violated any Federal, State or local laws 

pertaining to fraud, bribery, graft, kickbacks, collusion, conflict of interest or other unlawful or 
corrupt practice. 

 
6. That upon approval of its application, the Port Authority may enter into an 

agreement with the State of Minnesota, Metropolitan Council, and Ramsey County for the 
above-referenced project, and that the Port Authority certifies that it will comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations as stated in all contract agreements. 

 
7. That the President is hereby encouraged and authorized to request and accept 

from, if awarded, a Contamination Cleanup grant from the Minnesota Department of 
Employment and Economic Development (DEED) in an amount up to $1,000,000.00; a Tax Base 
Revitalization Account Contamination Cleanup grant from the Metropolitan Council in an 
amount up to $500,000.00; and, an Environmental Response Fund grant from Ramsey County 
in an amount up to $500,000.00 in grant funds for the United Village at Midway Project (Block 
B). 

 
8. That the President or anyone acting under his direction is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute any and all necessary documents to complete the grant application and 
secure its receipt, including any matching fund requirements. 

 
Adopted:  May 26, 2020    
 

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE  
CITY OF SAINT PAUL 

 
 
       By _____________________________ 
            Its Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By _____________________________ 
     Its Secretary  



 

MEMORANDUM 

SPPA Board of Commissioners| Page 1 | TPH:djk 
 

To:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS               Meeting Date: May 26, 2020 

From:  Todd P. Hurley   

Subject:  APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF UP TO $11,075,000 
OF TAXABLE TAX INCREMENT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS (TREASURE ISLAND 
CENTER) SERIES 2020 

  RESOLUTION NO. 4676 
 
Action Requested: 
Approval of a resolution authorizing the issuance of one or more series of Taxable Tax Increment 

Revenue  Refunding  Bonds  (Treasure  Island  Center  Project),  Series  2020  and  authorizing  the 

execution of  an  Indenture of  Trust with U.S.  Bank National  Association,  as  trustee,  and  related 

financing documents. 

Public Purpose: 
Approval of the issuance of the refunding bonds will provide funding to repay and refinance the 
Port  Authority’s  outstanding  Taxable  Tax  Increment  Revenue  Note  (Treasure  Island  Project), 
Series 2017 and reimburse the borrowing entity for other tax increment eligible costs incurred in 
connection with the redevelopment of Treasure Island Center.  

Business Subsidy: 
N/A  

Background: 
In 2015, The Port Authority and City of  Saint Paul  (with  the consent of  the HRA)  created  the 
Wabasha and Sixth Street Redevelopment Tax  Increment Financing District  (the “TIF District”) 
within the Downtown Industrial Development District (“IDD”) (as amended, the “IDD”), located 
on a 2.25 acre site  located adjacent  to Wabasha Street North, East Sixth Street, Cedar Street 
North  and  the Wells  Fargo  Center  complex  in  Saint  Paul, Minnesota  (the  “City”),  in  order  to 
redevelop previously improved land which had become blighted and contaminated.  

On October  25,  2016,  the  Port Authority  passed  a  resolution  to  issue Taxable  Tax  Increment 

Revenue Notes (Treasure Island Center Project), Series 2017 (the “Prior Note”),  in the original 

principal  of $11,077,000 to obtain funds to finance certain tax increment redevelopment costs 

associated with the redevelopment of the Treasure Island Center. 

The Port Authority  is now proposing to  issue one or more series of  its Taxable Tax  Increment 

Revenue  Refunding  Bonds  (Treasure  Island  Center  Project),  Series  2020  (the  “Series  2020 

Bonds”). In conformance with the TIF plan, the proceeds will be used by the Port Authority to:  (i) 

redeem and prepay the Port Authority’s outstanding Prior Note; (ii) fund or reimburse the Port 

Authority for tax increment eligible projects in the TIF District (the “2020 Project”); (iii) fund an 

amount  in the reserve funds for the Series 2020 Bonds; and (iv) pay costs of  issuance for the 

Series 2020 Bonds. 



 

 
 

SPPA Board of Commissioners| Page 2 | TPH:djk 

The Series 2020 Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Port Authority payable solely from 

and secured by a first charge and lien upon: (i) tax increments generated from the TIF District 

(the “Tax Increments” or the “Tax Increment Revenues”), (ii) the reserve funds and bond funds 

established  under  the  Indenture;  and  (iii) investment  earnings  on  money  held  under  the 

Indenture (collectively, the “Pledged Revenues”), all as provided for in the Indenture. 

The outstanding note has an  interest  rate of 5%.    These bonds are estimated  to have a  true 
interest cost of 4.75% (as of May 20, 2020) and a final maturity date of March 1, 2045.  

 
Proposal: 
 
Bonds:  Up to $11,075,000 of Taxable Tax Increment Revenue Refunding 

bonds 
 
Rate:  4.75% 
 
Term:    25 years 
 
Maturity:  March 1, 2045 
 
Issuer:  Saint Paul Port Authority 
   
Bond Counsel:  Ballard Spahr LLP 
 
Municipal Advisor/Pricing:  Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC 
 
Underwriter:  Dougherty & Company LLC 
 
Underwriter’s Counsel:  Kennedy & Graven, Chartered 
 
Trustee:  U.S. Bank National Association 
 
Disclosure: 
The Port Authority Commissioners by SEC rules are obligated to disclose any risks or facts you 
may be aware of that will affect the probability of repayment of this note. 

Recommendation: 
We  recommend approval  of  one or more  series of  Taxable Tax  Increment Revenue Refunding 

Bonds (Treasure Island Center Project), Series 2020 and the authorization to execute of an Indenture 

of Trust and related financing documents.   

 

Attachment:  Resolution 



1 

Resolution No. 4676 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

PORT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 

[ISSUANCE OF TAXABLE TAX INCREMENT REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
(TREASURE ISLAND CENTER) SERIES 2020] 

 
  WHEREAS, the Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, a public body corporate 
and politic  organized and existing  under  the  laws of  the  State  of Minnesota  (the “Issuer”),  is 
authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.048‐469.068, as amended, and Section 469.084, 
as amended (collectively, the “Port Authority Act”), and Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.174‐
469.1794,  as  amended  (the “TIF  Act”),  to  undertake  redevelopment  projects,  to  create  tax 
increment financing districts, and to authorize, sell, and issue revenue bonds payable, in whole 
or in part, from tax increment revenues derived from tax increment financing districts; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 469.178 and 469.174, subdivision 3, of 
the TIF Act, the Issuer is authorized to issue refunding bonds to redeem and prepay tax increment 
revenue bonds issued under the provisions of the TIF Act; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Issuer created, and the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota (the “City”) approved 
the creation of, the Wabasha and Sixth Street Redevelopment Tax Increment Financing District 
(the “TIF District”) within the Downtown Industrial Development District, located on a 2.25 acre 
site  located adjacent  to Wabasha Street North, East  Sixth Street, Cedar Street North and  the 
Wells Fargo Center complex in the City in order to redevelop previously improved land which for 
many years was the site of a Dayton’s/Macy’s department store and had become blighted and 
contaminated; and 
 
  WHEREAS, to obtain funds to refinance certain redevelopment costs associated with the 
redevelopment of  the  TIF District,  the  Issuer  issued  its  Taxable  Tax  Increment Revenue Note 
(Treasure Island Project), Series 2017 (the “Prior Note”), in the original principal amount of up to 
$11,077,000; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Prior Note was issued pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Issuer on October 25, 2016 (the “Prior Note Resolution”); 
and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  tax  increment  revenues derived  from  the TIF District which have been 
received and retained by the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the TIF Act, including 
without  limitation  Section  469.177  thereof  (the  “Tax  Increment  Revenues”) were  pledged  to 
payment  of  the  Prior  Note  pursuant  to  the  terms  of  the  Prior  Note  Resolution  and  a  Tax 
Increment Financing Plan (the “TIF Plan”), adopted by the Issuer on September 22, 2015, and 
approved by the City Council of the City on November 18, 2015; and 
 
   
 
 



2 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable and in the best interests of the Issuer and the City to issue 
tax increment revenue refunding bonds of the Issuer and apply the proceeds derived from the 
sale of the revenue refunding bonds to (i) the redemption and prepayment of the outstanding 
Prior Note, (ii) fund or reimburse the Issuer for tax increment eligible costs previously incurred in 
the TIF District; (iii) fund a deposit to the reserve fund(s); and (iv) pay costs of issuance for the 
Series 2020 Bonds; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the 
Port Authority of the City of Saint Paul as follows: 
 

1. For the purposes set forth above, there is hereby authorized the issuance, sale, 
and delivery of one or more series of revenue bonds of the Issuer to be designated Taxable Tax 
Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds (Wabasha and Sixth Street Redevelopment Tax Increment 
Financing District ‐ Treasure Island Center Project), Series 2020 (the “Series 2020 Bonds”), to be 
issued  in a  combined original aggregate principal amount not  to exceed $11,075,000.    In  the 
discretion of the Issuer, the Series 2020 Bonds may be designated as otherwise determined by 
the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall be issued under the terms 
of an Indenture of Trust, to be dated on or after June 1, 2020 (the “Indenture”), between the 
Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association, or such other trustee as may be selected by the Chief 
Financial Officer of the Issuer (the “Trustee”).  The Series 2020 Bonds shall bear interest at fixed 
rates established by the terms of the Indenture in accordance with Section 9 hereof.  The Series 
2020 Bonds shall be numbered, shall be dated, shall mature, shall be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity, shall be in such form, and shall have such other terms, details, and provisions as are 
prescribed in the Indenture, in the form now on file with the Issuer.  All of the provisions of the 
Series 2020 Bonds, when executed as authorized herein, shall be deemed to be a part of this 
resolution (this “Resolution”) as fully and to the same extent as if incorporated verbatim herein 
and shall be in full force and effect from the date of execution and delivery thereof.   

2. The Indenture is hereby approved in substantially the form now on file with the 
Issuer,  with  such  necessary  and  appropriate  variations,  omissions,  and  insertions  as  do  not 
materially change the substance thereof, or as President of the Issuer (or any Commissioner) and 
the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer or his designee (collectively, the “Issuer Officials”), in their 
discretion, shall determine, and the execution and delivery thereof by the Issuer Officials shall be 
conclusive evidence of such determination.  All of the provisions of the Indenture, when executed 
as authorized herein, shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution as fully and to the same 
extent as if incorporated verbatim herein and shall be in full force and effect from the date of 
execution and delivery thereof. 

3. The Tax Increment Revenues are hereby pledged to payment of the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2020 Bonds when due in accordance with the terms 
of this Resolution and the Indenture.  The pledge of the Tax Increment Revenues to the Series 
2020 Bonds shall constitute a  first,  superior, and prior pledge of the Tax  Increment Revenues 
(upon the defeasance of the Prior Note pursuant to the terms of the Prior Resolution), subject to 
the right of the Issuer to issue Additional Bonds (as defined in the Indenture) to which the Issuer 
may pledge the Tax Increment Revenues on a parity basis with the Series 2020 Bonds, and subject 
to the other limitations set forth in Indenture.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Indenture or 
the Series 2020 Bonds shall preclude the Issuer from issuing obligations secured by a subordinate 
pledge of the Tax Increment Revenues.   



3 

4. The Pricing Committee created by this Resolution, and consisting of the President 
and Chief  Financial Officer of  the  Issuer or  their  designee and a  representative of Baker  Tilly 
Municipal Advisors, LLC (the “Municipal Advisor”) (the “Pricing Committee”) is hereby delegated 
the authority to determine the final pricing of the Series 2020 Bonds and to negotiate the sale of 
the  Series  2020  Bonds  with  Dougherty  &  Company  LLC,  including  any  successor  thereto  by 
merger, acquisition, or otherwise (the “Underwriter”) and to authorize the Issuer to enter into a 
Bond Purchase Agreement with the Underwriter  to be dated the date of  the purchase of  the 
Series  2020  Bonds  (the  “Bond  Purchase  Agreement”)  with  the  Underwriter.  The  Pricing 
Committee is hereby delegated the authority to establish the terms and conditions of each series 
of the Series 2020 Bonds, subject to the limitations set forth in Section 9 of this Resolution.   

5. The Issuer Officials are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver on 
behalf of the Issuer a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, to be dated on or after June 1, 2020 (the 
“Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The Continuing Disclosure Certificate is hereby approved in 
substantially  the  form  now  on  file  with  the  Issuer,  with  such  necessary  and  appropriate 
variations, omissions, and insertions as do not materially change the substance thereof, or as the 
Issuer  Officials,  in  their  discretion,  shall  determine,  and  the  execution  of  the  Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate by the Issuer Officials shall be conclusive evidence of such determination.  
All of  the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, when executed and delivered as 
authorized herein, shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution as fully and to the same extent 
as if incorporated verbatim herein and shall be in full force and effect from the date of execution 
and delivery thereof.  The Chief Financial Officer, in the sole and absolute discretion of the Chief 
Financial Officer, may  elect  to  terminate  the  Continuing Disclosure  Certificate  and  substitute 
therefor  a  continuing  disclosure  certificate  or  continuing  disclosure  undertaking  pursuant  to 
which the Issuer will assume the sole responsibility for complying with the continuing disclosure 
obligations of the Issuer pursuant to SEC Rule 15c2‐12, as amended. 

6. The Issuer Officials, with the approval as to form by the City Attorney, are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Series 2020 Bonds, the Indenture, the Bond 
Purchase Agreement,  the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and any  consents,  subordinations, 
and such other documents as are necessary or appropriate in connection with the issuance, sale, 
and delivery of  the Series 2020 Bonds,  including without  limitation various  certificates of  the 
Issuer, and similar documents (collectively, the “Financing Documents”); provided that the Bond 
Purchase  Agreement may  be  executed  on  behalf  of  the  Issuer  by  the  President  or  the  Chief 
Financial Officer of the Issuer.  

The  approval  hereby  given  to  the  Financing  Documents  includes  approval  of  such 
additional details therein as may be necessary and appropriate and such modifications thereof, 
deletions therefrom and additions thereto as may be necessary and appropriate as determined 
by the parties thereto and approved by bond counsel to the Issuer, the appropriate Issuer staff 
person  or  by  the  officers  authorized  herein  to  execute  or  accept,  as  the  case  may  be,  said 
documents prior to their execution; and said officers or staff members are hereby authorized to 
approve said changes on behalf of the Issuer.  The execution of any instrument by the appropriate 
officer or officers of the Issuer herein authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of 
such document in accordance with the terms hereof.  In the event of absence or disability of the 
officers, any of the documents authorized by this Resolution to be executed may be executed 
without  further  act  or  authorization  of  the  Board  by  any member  of  the  Board  or  any  duly 
designated acting official, or by such other officer or officers of the Board as, in the opinion of 
the bond counsel to the Issuer, may act in their behalf.  



4 

It is hereby found, determined, and declared that the issuance and sale of the Series 2020 
Bonds,  the  execution  and  delivery  by  the  Issuer  of  the  Financing  Documents,  and  the 
performance  of  all  covenants  and  agreements  of  the  Issuer  contained  in  the  Financing 
Documents and of all other acts and things required under the Constitution and laws of the State 
of Minnesota to make the Financing Documents and the Series 2020 Bonds the valid and binding 
special  obligations of  the  Issuer  in  accordance with  their  terms,  are  authorized by  applicable 
Minnesota  law,  including,  without  limitation,  the  Port  Authority  Act,  the  TIF  Act,  and  this 
Resolution. 

7. The  Series 2020 Bonds  shall  not  constitute  general or moral  obligations of  the 
Issuer or  the City.   The Series 2020 Bonds are revenue bonds of  the  Issuer and are not  to be 
payable from or chargeable against any funds other than the Pledged Revenues (as defined in 
the  Indenture)  and other  assets  expressly  pledged  to  the payment of  the  Series  2020 Bonds 
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, the Indenture, and the terms of the Series 2020 Bonds.  
The Issuer and the City shall not be subject to any liability thereon other than from such Revenues 
and assets pledged thereto and no holder of any Series 2020 Bonds shall have the right to compel 
any exercise by the Issuer or the City of their taxing powers (other than as contemplated by the 
pledge of  Tax  Increment Revenues)  to  the payment of  the principal of,  premium,  if  any,  and 
interest on the Series 2020 Bonds or to enforce payment thereof against any property of the 
Issuer or the City other than the property expressly pledged thereto.  The Series 2020 Bonds shall 
not constitute a charge, lien, or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the Issuer 
or the City other than the Revenues and other assets described in the Granting Clauses of the 
Indenture, all of which have been assigned to the Trustee under the terms of the Indenture.  The 
Series  2020  Bonds  shall  not  constitute  a  debt  of  the  Issuer  within  the  meaning  of  any 
constitutional or statutory limitation on indebtedness. 

8. With the assistance of the Underwriter, counsel to the Underwriter, the Municipal 
Advisor, bond counsel to the Issuer and the City Attorney, the Chief Financial Officer is hereby 
authorized to prepare a Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement with respect to 
the offer and sale of the Series 2020 Bonds and to authorize the distribution of the Preliminary 
Official Statement and the Official Statement to prospective purchasers of the Series 2020 Bonds.  
When deemed appropriate by the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Financial Officer is authorized 
to deliver to the Underwriter a certification on behalf of the Issuer that the Preliminary Official 
Statement is deemed final as of its date except for the omission of no more than the following 
information:    (i) the offering prices;  (ii)  interest rates;  (iii)  selling compensation;  (iv) aggregate 
principal amount; (v) principal amount per maturity; (vi) delivery date; and (vii) any other terms 
of the Series 2020 Bonds depending on such facts. 

9. The Pricing Committee is hereby authorized and directed to make the following 
determinations (subject to the limitations expressed herein):  (i) the original principal amount of 
the Series 2020 Bonds, provided that the aggregate original aggregate principal amount of the 
Series 2020 Bonds shall not exceed the maximum principal amount authorized in Section 1 of this 
Resolution; (ii) the combined interest rate per annum to be borne by each maturity of the Series 
2020 Bonds, provided that the combined true interest cost for the Series 2020 Bonds shall not 
exceed 5.00%; (iii) the maturity dates for the Series 2020 Bonds, provided that the final maturity 
date for the Series 2020 Bonds shall not be later than March 1, 2045; (iv) the principal amount of 
each serial maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds and the sinking fund redemption schedule for each 
term maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds; (v) the dates on which each series of Series 2020 Bonds 
may be optionally redeemed; and (vi) the original issue discount or the original issue premium at 



5 

which each maturity of the Series 2020 Bonds will be offered, subject to the true interest cost 
limitation set forth in clause (ii) of this Section 9.  On the date such determinations are made and 
the Bond Purchase Agreement is signed, the members of the Pricing Committee shall execute a 
certificate setting forth its determinations, which certificate shall be attached to this Resolution 
and become part of the official records of the Issuer relating to the Series 2020 Bonds. 

10. The  Issuer  hereby  approves  the  execution  and  delivery  by  the  Trustee  of  the 
Indenture and all other instruments, certificates, and documents prepared in conjunction with 
the  issuance of  the Series 2020 Bonds  that  require execution by  the Trustee.    The Trustee  is 
appointed as Paying Agent pursuant to Section 9‐10 of the Indenture and is directed to maintain 
and  keep a Bond Register  for  the  registration and  transfer of  Series  2020 Bonds pursuant  to 
Section 2‐9 of the Indenture and such appointments are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

11. On or after the date of issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, the Issuer Officials are 
hereby authorized and directed  to  take  any or  all  of  the  following actions  to provide  for  the 
defeasance, redemption, and prepayment of the Prior Note, including providing for the delivery 
of any conditional or unconditional notices of redemption and obtaining a defeasance opinion of 
bond counsel. 

12. In  case  any  one  or  more  of  the  provisions  of  this  Resolution,  or  of  the 
aforementioned documents, or of the Series 2020 Bonds issued hereunder shall for any reason 
be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of 
this  Resolution,  or  of  the  aforementioned  documents,  or  of  the  Series  2020  Bonds,  but  this 
Resolution, the aforementioned documents, and the Series 2020 Bonds shall be construed and 
endorsed as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been contained therein. 

13. The Series 2020 Bonds, when executed and delivered, shall contain a recital that 
they  are  issued pursuant  to  the Port Authority Act  and  the  TIF Act,  and  such  recital  shall  be 
conclusive evidence of the validity of the Series 2020 Bonds and the regularity of the issuance 
thereof, and that all acts, conditions, and things required by the laws of the State of Minnesota 
relating to the adoption of this Resolution, to the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, and to the 
execution of the aforementioned documents to happen, exist, and be performed precedent to 
the  execution  of  the  aforementioned  documents  have  happened,  exist,  and  have  been 
performed as so required by law. 

14. The officers of the Issuer, bond counsel, disclosure counsel, other attorneys, and 
other agents or employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized to do all acts and things required 
of them by or in connection with this Resolution, the aforementioned documents, and the Series 
2020 Bonds for the full, punctual, and complete performance of all the terms, covenants, and 
agreements  contained  in  the  Series  2020  Bonds,  the  aforementioned  documents,  and  this 
Resolution.  In the event that for any reason any of the Issuer Officials is unable to carry out the 
execution  of  any  of  the  documents  or  other  acts  provided  herein,  such  documents  may  be 
executed and such actions may be taken by any official or employee of the  Issuer or the City 
delegated  the  duties  of  any  such  Issuer  Official  with  the  same  force  and  effect  as  if  such 
documents were executed and delivered by such Issuer Official. 

15. On any date subsequent  to  the date of  issuance of  the Series 2020 Bonds,  the 
Issuer Officials are hereby authorized to execute and deliver any amendments or supplements to 
any of the documents referred to in this Resolution or other documents executed and delivered 
in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds.  The Issuer Officials may impose any 



6 

terms or conditions on the execution and delivery of any such amendment or supplement as the 
Issuer  Officials  deem  appropriate.    The  authority  to  approve,  execute,  and  deliver  future 
amendments to the documents referred to in this Resolution or other documents executed and 
delivered in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds entered into by the Issuer in 
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby is hereby delegated to the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Issuer, subject to the following conditions: (a) such amendments do not require the 
consent of the holders of the Series 2020 Bonds or, if required, such consent has been obtained; 
(b) such amendments do not materially adversely affect the interests of the Issuer as the Issuer; 
(c) such  amendments  do  not  contravene  or  violate  any  policy  of  the  Issuer;  and  (d)  such 
amendments are acceptable  in  form and  substance  to  the City Attorney  for  the  Issuer, bond 
counsel, or other counsel retained by the Issuer to review such amendments.  The authorization 
hereby given shall be further construed as authorization for the execution and delivery of such 
certificates  and  related  items  as  may  be  required  to  demonstrate  compliance  with  the 
agreements being amended and the terms of this Resolution. The execution of any instrument 
by the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of such 
instruments in accordance with the terms hereof. In the absence of the Chief Financial Officer of 
the Issuer, any instrument authorized by this paragraph to be executed and delivered may be 
executed by the officer of the Issuer authorized to act in their place and stead. 

16. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

Adopted:  May 26, 2020 
 
  PORT AUTHORITY OF THE 
  CITY OF SAINT PAUL 
 
 
  By __________________________ 
  Its __________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
By ____________________________ 
Its ____________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	April 28, 2020 Minutes 
	Revised, Amended & Restated Resolution No. 4673
	Map 
	Revised, Amended, Restated Resolution No. 4673 - Redline 
	Revised, Amended, Restated Resolution No. 4675  
	Approval of Taxable TI Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2020 
	Resolution No. 4676



